IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICTICOURT
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF TEFNES$EE
WESTERN DIVISION ‘

CHAN XENDRICK, MIKE HONEY,
. JOHN DOE and the

AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION
IN WEST TENNESSEE, INC.,

Plaintiffs,

vs. | o o NO. C 76-449

WYETH CHANDLER, individually and

in his official capacity as Mayor

of the City of Memphis, Tennessee, and
W. O. CRUMBY, individually and -as
Chief of Police and acting Dlrector

of Police of the City of Memphis,
Tennessee, P. T. RYAN, individually.
and as Captain of the Intelligence
Section of the Memphis Police Department,
-GEORGE W. HUTCHISON, individually and
as Deputy Chief of Operations of the
Memphls Police Department

Defendants.

COMPLAINT

Come now the plaintiffs,and for their cause of action
agaihst‘the defendants allege and state as follows:’
I.

JURISDICTION

1. Jurisdictioﬁ of this Court is in&oked pursuant to
- 28 U.S.C. §§1331 and 1343 as well as under 42 U.S.C. §§l983,
1985, 1986 and 1988 in cénjunction withvrights secured by
the'First,_éeurth; Fifth, Sixth, Ninth and Fourteenth
Amendments to the Constitution of’the ﬁnited States; this
Court also hes pendent jurisdiction over causes of action
' arising unéer the laws ef the State of Tennessee. The
jamount in cOntroverey'exceeds:$l0,000,’exclusive of interest
end costs. | |

IT.

CIVIL ACTION

2. This is a civil action for declaratory and injunctive

relief and for monetary damages.




ITI.

PARTIE}S
3. ' Plaintiffs:
| (a) Chan Kendrick is a c¢itizen of the Unlted
,:States and a re51dent of Memphis, Shelby County, Tennessee,
and is the Executive Dlrector of the’ Amerlcan C1v1l Liberties
" Union of Tennessee, Inc. and has been actively engaged in
act1v1t1es protected by the First, Fourth, Flfth Ninth
ahd Fourteenth Amendments to the Constltutlon of the United
'States, and who 1ntends to continue in such act1v1ty in
the future. On information and belief, plaintiff Kendrick
alleges_that he was the subject of unlawful surveillance by
the Memphis Police Department "Domestic Intelligence Unit."
| (b) Mike Honey is a citizen of the United States
and a tesident of Washington, District of Columbia, where he
is Sonthern Director of the National Committee Against
Repressive Legislation (NCARL) . Mr. Honey was formefly a
resident of Memphis, Shelby County, Tennessee, and at such
time was associated with NCARL and at all pertinentftimes
was actively-engaged in activities protected by the First,
Fourth, Fifth, Ninth and Fourteenth Amendments to- the
Constitution of the United States, and intends to continue
in Sueh acti&ity in the future. Plaintiff Honey alleges
that he was the suhject of unlawful Surveillance by the
Memphis Police Department "Domestic Intelllgence Unit"
and that the defendants maintained a file on him.

(c) The American Civil Liberties Union of West
Tennessee, Inc. ("WTCLU") is a Chapter of thevAmerican Civil
':Liberties Union of Tennessee, Inc., which is an affiliate of
the American Civil Liberties Union, all being non~ptofit,
non—partisan.erganizationS'dedicated to the preservation of
citizens' rights and liberties guaranteed by the constitu-
tion and laws of the United States. The West Tennessee

Chapter>is comprised. of approximately five hundred members




residing in the Western Disfrict of Tennessee, each of whom
is dedicated todand involved in activities and conduct
protected by the FirSt, Fourth, Fifth, Sixth, Ninth and
Fourteenth Amendments to the Constitution of the United
States, and the corporate entity itgelf is dedicated fo and
invol&ed in such constitutionaliy protected activities. The‘
WICLU, and its memberslintend to continue such'activities

iﬁ the-future. On information and belief, the WTCLU alleges
thatbit has been the subject ofbunlawfui'surveillance‘by the .
Memphis Police Department "Domestie Intelligence Unit;”

(d) John Doe is.a citizen of the United States
whose true name and identity is,unkheWn becausevthe defendants
-have destroyed the recofds and evidenee necessaryrto disclose
his true name and identity. John Doe represents ell'those
persons and/or organizatione who were engaged_in eonduct and
activities protected by the First, Foﬁrth, Fifth,'sixth,

Ninth and Feurteenfh-Amehdments'te the Constitution of the
United States. John Doe intends to continue in such activity -
in the future.
4. bDefendants:
‘A(a), The defendant Weyth Chandler is sued individ-

ually and. in his OfflClal capacity as the Mayor of the City
of Memphis and is responsible for»the‘administration and
vcontrol‘of the Memphie Police:Department.

| | (b) ‘The defendant W. O..Crumby is sued individually
and in his official capacity as Chief of Police and acting’ |
Director of the Memphis Police Department.

(c) Tﬁe defendant George‘w. Hutchison is sued
individually and in hie officialACapacity‘as_Deputy Chief of
Operations of the Memphis Police Department.

| (d) The defendant P. T. Ryan is sued individually
and in his official capacity as head_of the Domestic Intelligence

Unit, a section of the Memphis Police Department.




Iv. .

-

" CLASS ACTION

1

5. This action is brought on behalf of the_individual
plaintiffs and on behalf of all persons similarly situated
pursuant to Rule 23(a) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure
and is maintainable under Rules 23 (b) (1) ( A),»23(b)(2) and
23(b) (3). |

(a). "The piaintiffs represent a class of ail
indiv1duals and organizations who have engaged in consti—
tutionally protected act1ViLy and conduct, and who have been
subjects of 1nvest1gation by the Domestic Intelligence Unit
of the Memphis Police Department

(b) The plaintiffs represent a class of all
citizens.and‘organizations‘ef‘Memphis who wish to exercise-
their rights under thebFirst Amendment to engage in lawful
political expressions, associations and assembly without
being the objects of covert and overt surveillance and

intelligence by agents, servants, employees and infermants
of the defendants and without becoming the subjects of
dossiers; reports andbfiles.maintained by the defendants.

A (c) Upon information‘and belief the number of
such persons are so numerous that the joinderrof all members
of the class is impratical. The total number and identity
of the(ciass members is known only to the defendants.

(d) There are common questions of law and  fact
affecting all members of the elass and said common questions
A'predominate o&er any questions'affecting'the individual
members tolsuch.a'degree that a class action is the only
'practical method available for the fair and efficient
adjudication of.this controversy. |

| (e). The prosecution of separate claims by the
individual members of the class Would constitdte a burden

on the vindication of their rights and create a risk of




inconsistent or varying adjudica?ions which wOuld establish
inéompatible standards for the'defendahts' conduct. - Thé
claims of the representative parties have the same legal and
factual basis‘as the claims of the membefs df the class and
the defendants have aCted_on.identical‘grounds with respect
to all the members of the class and common relief ié Sought.
Furthermore,,thefplaiﬁtifﬁs Will fairly and adequately
protect the intereéts of the claséf |

| VAN

FIRST CAUSE .OF ACTION

6. Upon information and belief, the Memphis Police
Departmént in or about 1965 established a Domestic Intelligénce
Unit whose purpose was toiinvestigate.and maintain files
upon citizens engaged in non-criminal, constitutionally
protedteé activities which were thought to be "subversiyg"A
‘and/or advocating unpopular or controversial political
‘issﬁes. See Exhibit "ALT |

7. Upon information and belief the defendants gathefed,
maintained and held in'their possession, custody and control,
files,-recofds and reports that contéined unverified
information and éossip'which related exclusively to the
exercise of lawful and peaceful activities.u SuCH files,
>records and reports were colleéﬁed in violation of the
First, Fourth, Fifth, Ninth and Fourteenth Amendments."

é. Upon informaﬁion and belief, said files, records
and reports éerved no.-lawful or valid law enforcement
purpose and -contained: | |

(a)  information on-citizens'who were ne&er
suspected and/or accused.éf criminal . conduct;
(b) information on citizens who may §r may not
have been suspected of criminal-conduqt bﬁt which was -
" obtained, gathered and collected by unlawful means, including,
but not nécesSarily limited to,.the improper use of informaﬁts,

illegal, improper and unwarranted surveillance and interception




of oral énd/or'wire communication and otheflsophisticated
>forms of survéillanceIWhich contrévene federal and state
constitutional and statutory rigﬁts;

(c)  information on citizehs who have or have not
beén accused or suspected of criminal conduct bﬁt'which has
Oor may have been-disseminated to_bther'parties, persons,
agenciés‘and/orfinstiﬁutions having no legitimate law
enforcément'need for the information;

(d) information on citizenébwh0~have or have not
been accused or suspected of criminal conduct but.which is
knowingly"or patently inaccurate and/or erroneous and/br
unverified or unverifiable and which was gathered and
collected in total disregard for the truth. ‘
| 9. » By’letter dated August 15, 1976, Eric Carter, a
fbrmer resident of Memphis and presideﬁt ofithé studént-body
at Memphis Stéte Uhiversity and a member of the Vietnam
VeﬁeransAAgainét the War, requested that the defendants -

- grant him permission to see the file maintained on him by

the Domestic Intelligence Unit.v Said request was répeated‘
_during the'following two weeks. Prior to the Police‘Depart—
.ment;s legal advisor ruling on‘whéther Mf..Carter had- the .

_ iegal right to see his file, and without prior approval of
.the Police legal advisor, the defendants physically destroyed
the fiie by'inéineration. ‘The defendant Hutchison, on
information and belief, admitted'that he personaily reviewed

‘Mr. Carter's file and that it contained no information.

indicating any criminal activity on Carter‘s'part.f See
“Exhibit "A."
10. .Subsequently, it was revealed by the defendants

that they'maiﬁtaihed Domestic Intelligence Unit files on
persons other than Mr. Carterf

| 11. On information and belief, at least two members of
the Memphis City Council requested that the'defendant

Chandler refrain from destruction, alteration or disseminationA




-

of the.filee maintained by'the Domestic Intelligenee Unit
pehding'an inves£igation'by the Council's Law.Enforcement
Committee as to the'scope, extent’and purposerf the Domeetic
~ Intelligence Unit. See Exhibit "A."

12. Prior to Z2.:30 p.m. on September lO,:l976, the
plainﬁiff Chan Kendrick,‘individually and in official
capacity as ExecutiﬁefDirector of the American Civil'Liberties
Union of Tennessee, and plaintiff WTCLU,'reqﬁested that the
defendants not destroy, alter or diseeminate any of the
files maintained by the Domestic'Intelliéence_Unit.

13. On information and belief, it is alleged thet
sometime prior to 11:30 a.m..on September 10, 1976, the'
defendants Chandler, Crumby, Ryan aﬁd'other persons unknown
to‘the plaintiffs met and determinedeto deétroy all files .
maintained by the‘Domestic Intelligence Unit and to disband
sald unit. Subsequently, the defendant Chandler held a
press conference and announced the aforementioned deeisions;

14.  Immediately thereafter, . the plaintiffs WICLU and
Chen Kendrick obtaihed'a temporary restraining order from -
this Court enjoining the defendants Chandler end Crumby and
those persons in active concert with them from destroying;
altering,or in any manner disclosing the files, fecords or
other materials colleeted, assembled or gathered and held by
aefendants aﬁa known as domestie”intelligence files.

15. The defendants alleged that all of the'Domestid
Intelligence Unit:files had beeﬁ destroyed prior to receiving'
notice of theitemporary restraining order.

16. - Upde information and belief, a purpose and result
"Qf the collection, maintenance and dissemination of such
informatidn concerning political and other conétitutionally
protected activity is to harass and intimidate plaintiffs
‘and othersasimilarly situated. Upon inférmation‘ahd belief,
the defehdants conduct was for the purpoSe and had the

effects of discouraging the exercise of the constitutional
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rights of freedom of expression, speech, assembly, association,
religion, and the right to petition the government for
redress of grievances seoured by the First Amendment; rights
under'the Fourth Amendment including the right to privacy
and to be free from unreasonable search and selzures, rlghts
under the Fifth Amendment 1nclud1ng the right of privacy and
due process; rights under the Ninth Amendment, including the
right’to brivacy;‘andrrights under the Fourteenth Amendment
including the rlght to due process, privacy, liberty, equal
protectlon and the pr1v1leges and immunities of citizens
to be free from arbitrary state actlon exceeding the legltlmate
police power of the state which has a chilling effect upon
the exercise of all of the aforementioned constitutionally‘
proteoted-rights. |

VI.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

17, Plaintiffs'incorporate by reference oaragraph
2-16 of the Complaint. The effect of the defendants’ act1v1t1es,
and the ~widespread publlClty given thereto, is to cast a
~pall upon constltutlonally protected political'activity in
Memphis, Tennessee, and to deter'plaintiffs,and other
similarly situated from exercising their First Amendment'
rfghts to.eXpress their political beliefs, to-diesent from
governmental policies, to advocate unpopular or ‘controversial
ideas; to exercise their freedom of association and the
freedom of the press. Defendents conduct chilled the
' exercise of saidvrights.by instilling the fear that
plaintiffs and others simularly situated will be made
Esubjects of dossrers or reports by the Domestlc Intelllgence
Unit or other units of the Memphis Police Department
VIII.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

18, Therplaintiffs incorporate paragraphs 2~17 of the

'Complaint. The collection, maintenance and dissemination of .




1nformatlon concernlng the constltutlonally protected
activity of the plaintiffs and ofther similarly situated
constltutes an 1nva51on of the rlght of prlvacy guaranteed
and protected by the First, Fourth, Fifth and Ninth Amend-
ments to the Constitution.. The conduct of the defendants
exceeds the lawful needs and statutory authorlty of the
Memphls Pollce Department and is beyond the constltutlonal
authority of the Mayor and the Police Department.

| . |

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

19. ~The plaintiffs 1ncorporate paragraphs 2-18 of the
Complalnt The individuals and organizations whose names
are or were contalned in the flles heretofore referred to
have a right to sue for damages in the federal courts for
the deprivation of»their civil rights as‘providedkby 18
U.5.C. §2520, 42 u.s.c., §§1983, 1985, 1986, and 1988.

ZO. The defendants and thelr agents have consplred to
conceal the existence of such 1llegal conduct and have
willfully failed to,'and refused to, inform said individuals
and organizations that they were subjects of illegal surveillance
and/or subject,of or included in said files. Said individuals
and/or‘organizations have a right of'access to the federal
courts guaranteed by Acts of Congress, the due process and
priVileges and immunitiesdclauses'ofvthe Fourteenth Amendment
and the First, Fourth, Fifth, Sixth and Ninth Amendments to
the Constitution for the redress of deprivations of civil
rights. The defendants' actions to conceal said activities
and files and the subsequent flagrant destruction of said
files while there:were pending requests.to,safe—keep the
files, deprives said citizens of their constitutional right
to the redress of grievances in violation offthe First and
»Fourteenth Amendments to the Constitution and in v1olatlon

of 42 U.S.C., §§1983 and/or 1985. The destructlon of said
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files has deprived the plaintiffs of their right to know "

- whether their respective némes afe containéd in said files,
their righ£ to obtain évideﬁce.material to- the depfivaﬁioﬁ
of the fights hereinabove alleged and the right £o sue for
the vindicatioﬁ thereof.

| - X.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

21, The plaintiffs incorpbrate paragraphs 2-20 of
the Complaint. Ali of the activities héretofore'alleged
constitute a tort injury under common law aﬁd the law‘of
Tennessee for defamatibn ihcluding libel and slander
and for.invasion of privacy. |

”WHEREFORE, plaintiffs respectfully request the following

reliéf: A |

| 1. That this Coﬁft declare that ﬁhe surveillande,
collection,»maintenance;‘storage and distribution of in-
formatioh by the.defendants, their agents, servanté and
employees about the'conétitutionally prdtected-activities
- of the plaintiffs and otﬁer persons'and‘organizatiéhs
similarly situated violates the First, Fourth, Fifth and
Ninth Amendments to the Constitution.

2. Thaﬁ this Court perﬁanently enjoin the defendants,
their agents} servants and empldyees, ffom spying on,
surveilling, infiltrafing, or otherwise collecting, main-
-taining or using any information, records, files and dossiers
of any kind relating to thé constitutionally protected
activities of pléintiffs and other persons and organizations
'similarly situated.

3.  That this Court compel the defendants to deliver
to this Court all domestic intelligence files (including
any and all copies thereof) and any microfilm, indexes,
Cross ieferences, log sheefs, photographs, publicatipns,'
réports, data computer tapes, cards,or aﬁy other materials
maintained by the Domestic Intelligence Unit as‘well és any .

other document showing any and all parties who had access
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thereto.' That this Court notify such person or organization
about Whom said files containéd pértineht information, and

. to provide said citizens and oréaﬁiZations-access thereto,
with or without counsel, for‘examination ana copying thereof,
and to épprise'said individuals and organizations of their
»fights.and remediés torreiief for the unconstitutional
inQasion of their rights,heretofore_déscribed.

4. That this Court grant the plaintiffs expedited
_discovery to take depositions of the defendants;-their
‘agents, employees, servants or those acting in acﬁive
cbncért and participation with them or other witnesses‘
-immediately, pursuant to Rule 26, et seqg., Fed. R. Civ. P.,
and specifically Rule 30 (a). |

5. That this Court award each named plaintiff the sum
of $50,000 damages for injuries suffered as a result of the
 deprivation'Qf their constitutional statutory‘and common law
.rights, 2

6. That this Court grant the plaintiffs costs and
feasonable'attorneys' fees. . | :

7. That this Court grant the plaintiffs such other
and further relief«as this Court may'deém just appropriate

and necessary.

F
BRUCE S. KRAMER, Attorney for
"the American Civil Liberties
Union in West Tennessee, Inc.
P. 0. Box 3070

Memphis, Tennessee 38103

5/

JACK D. NOVIK, and
- MELVIN L. WULF, American Civil
Liberties Foundation
22 East 40th Street
New York, New York 10016
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STATE OF TENNESSEE

COUNTY OF SHELBY

CHAN KENDRICK, being duly sworn, deposes and says that.
he:is a resideﬁt of Memphis, Shelby County, Tennessee. He
is one of the plalntlffs herein, and he has lead the foregoing
complalnt and knows the contents thereof and that the same
are true of his own’kﬁowiedge except es to the matters
- therein stated to be.alleged on informationAand belief, and

- as to those matters he believes them to be true.

(:§k3A~«¥QA«QﬂAhQZ

CHAN KENDRICK

» SWORN to and subscribed before me this S:SXKHéy of
September, 1976.

N§‘> </¢H£7 é&kQ .«%._ﬁ

Notary Public

s _\-:f:\\,‘ R
- oS

My commission expires:

//'

-V 1=
/ .
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